
 
 

 

Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Member for 
Community Services & Safety 
 

Tuesday, 21 September 2021 at 3.00 pm 

County Hall, New Road, Oxford OX1 1ND 
 

Items for Decision 
 
The items for decision under individual Cabinet Members’ delegated powers are listed 

overleaf, with indicative timings, and the related reports are attached.  Decisions taken 
will become effective at the end of the working day on Thursday 29 September 2021 
unless called in by that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. 

 
Copies of the reports are circulated (by e-mail) to all members of the County Council. 

 

These proceedings are open to the public 
 

Please note that Council meetings are currently taking place in-person (not virtually) with 
social distancing at the venue. Meetings will continue to be live-streamed and those who 

wish to view them are strongly encouraged to do so online to minimise the risk of Covid 
19 infection.  
 

If you wish to view proceedings, please click on this Live Stream Link.  However, that will 
not allow you to participate in the meeting.  

 
Places at meetings are very limited due to the requirements of social distancing. If you 
still wish to attend this meeting in person, you must contact the Committee Officer by 

9.00 a.m. four working days before the meeting and they will advise if you can be 
accommodated at this meeting and of the detailed Covid-19 safety requirements for all 

attendees.  
 

Please note that in line with current government guidance all attendees are 

strongly encouraged to take a lateral flow test in advance of the meeting. 

 

 
Yvonne Rees 
Chief Executive 

September 2021 

 
Committee Officer: Lucy Tyrrell 

Tel: 07741 607834; Email: lucy.tyrrell@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Note:  Date of next meeting: 19 October 2021 

Public Document Pack

oxon.cc/DDCMCSS21092021


 

 
 
 

 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
 



Page 2  
 

 

 

Items for Decision 
 

1. Declaration of Interest  
 

2. Questions from County Councillors  

 

Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9.00 a.m. two 
working days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the Cabinet 
Member’s delegated powers. 

 
The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one meeting is 

limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary question at the meeting) 
and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in total. As with questions at 
Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the end of this item will receive a 

written response. 
 

Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and will be 
the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such other councillor 
or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Member, and shall not be the subject of further 

debate at this meeting. Questions received after the despatch of the agenda, but before 
the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of Addenda circulated at the meeting, 

together with any written response which is available at that time. 
 

3. Petitions and Public Address  

 
Currently council meetings are taking place in-person (not virtually) with social distancing 

operating in the venues.  However, members of the public who wish to speak at this 
meeting can attend the meeting ‘virtually’ through an online connection.  Places at the 
meeting are very limited due to the requirements of social distancing.  While you can ask 

to attend the meeting in person, you are strongly encouraged to attend ‘virtually’ to 
minimise the risk of Covid-19 infection. 

 
Please also note that in line with current government guidance all attendees are strongly 
encouraged to take a lateral flow test in advance of the meeting. 

 
Normally requests to speak at this public meeting are required by 9.00 a.m. on the day 

preceding the published date of the meeting. However, during the current situation and to 
facilitate these new arrangements we are asking that requests to speak are submitted by 
no later than 9.00 a.m. four working days before the meeting i.e. 9.00 a.m. on 15 

September 2021. Requests to speak should be sent to lucy.tyrrell@oxfordshire.gov.uk.  
You will be contacted by the officer regarding the arrangements for speaking. 

 
If you ask to attend in person, the officer will also advise you regarding Covid-19 safety 
at the meeting.  If you are speaking ‘virtually’, you may submit a written statement of your 

presentation to ensure that if the technology fails, then your views can still be taken into 
account. A written copy of your statement can be provided no later than 9.00 a.m. 2 

working days before the meeting i.e. Friday 17 September 2021. Written submissions 
should be no longer than 1 A4 sheet. 
 

4. Thames Valley Principal Officer Sharing Agreement (Pages 1 - 10) 



Page 3  
 

 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2021/139 

Contact: Rob MacDougall, Director for Community Safety & Chief Fire Officer Tel: 07881 
583208 

 
Report by Director for Community Safety & Chief Fire Officer. 
 

The Fire and Rescue Authorities (FRA) collaborate successfully in the operation of a 
single joint emergency call handling, mobilising and resource management function from 

a single location at Calcot in Berkshire and a fallback provision to a joint secondary 
control room in Kidlington in Oxfordshire (together the Thames Valley Fire Control 
Service).   

 

The FRAs have statutory responsibilities under sections 7(2)(a); 8(2)(a) and 9(3)(a) of 

the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 to secure the provision of personnel to respond 

to fires, road traffic incidents, and other emergencies; have powers under section 11 of 

the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 to respond to other emergencies; and have 

duties placed on them as Category 1 responders under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 

and regulations made pursuant to it (the “Statutory Functions”). 

 

The FRAs recognise that the Covid 19 Pandemic is a national crisis that continues to test 

the capacity of the Services to protect the public from the impacts of the Covid 19 

Pandemic, and acknowledge the risk that its Principal Officers may themselves become 

incapacitated through illness or the requirements of Covid 19 self-isolation such that 

such scenarios could compromise the ability of an FRA to discharge its Statutory 

Functions. 

 

The FRAs therefore wish to enter into arrangements under section 16 of the Fire and 

Rescue Services Act 2004 for the discharge of the Statutory Functions of one FRA by 

another FRA through their respective cadres of Principal Officer acting as Level 4 

Incident Commanders on the terms set out in the legal agreement.  

 

The Cabinet Member for Community Services and Safety is RECOMMENDED to 
authorise the sealing of the legal agreement which will allow Oxfordshire Fire and 

Rescue to enter arrangements under section 16 of the Fire and Rescue Services 
Act 2004 for the discharge of the Statutory Functions of one FRA by another FRA 

through their respective cadres of Principal Officers acting as Level 4 Incident 
Commanders across the Thames Valley. 



 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR COMMUNITY SERVICES AND SAFETY  

- 21ST SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

THAMES VALLEY PRINCIPAL FIRE OFFICER SHARING AGREEMENT 

 

Report by Corporate Director, Commercial Development, Assets 
and Investment 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. The Cabinet Member for Community Services and Safety is 

RECOMMENDED to authorise the sealing of the legal agreement which will 
allow Oxfordshire Fire and Rescue to enter arrangements under section 
16 of the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 for the discharge of the 

Statutory Functions of one FRA by another FRA through their respective 
cadres of Principal Officers acting as Level 4 Incident Commanders 

across the Thames Valley. 

 

Executive Summary 

 
2. The Fire and Rescue Authorities (FRA) collaborate successfully in the operation 

of a single joint emergency call handling, mobilising and resource management 
function from a single location at Calcot in Berkshire and a fallback provision to 
a joint secondary control room in Kidlington in Oxfordshire (together the Thames 

Valley Fire Control Service).   
 

The FRAs have statutory responsibilities under sections 7(2)(a); 8(2)(a) and 

9(3)(a) of the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 to secure the provision of 

personnel to respond to fires, road traffic incidents, and other emergencies; 

have powers under section 11 of the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 to 

respond to other emergencies; and have duties placed on them as Category 1 

responders under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 and regulations made 

pursuant to it (the “Statutory Functions”). 

 

The FRAs recognise that the Covid 19 Pandemic is a national crisis that 

continues to test the capacity of the Services to protect the public from the 

impacts of the Covid 19 Pandemic, and acknowledge the risk that its Principal 

Officers may themselves become incapacitated through illness or the 

requirements of Covid 19 self-isolation such that such scenarios could 

compromise the ability of an FRA to discharge its Statutory Functions. 

 

The FRAs therefore wish to enter into arrangements under section 16 of the 

Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 for the discharge of the Statutory 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 

Functions of one FRA by another FRA through their respective cadres of 

Principal Officer acting as Level 4 Incident Commanders on the terms set out 

in the legal agreement.  

Financial Implications 

 
3. Except as otherwise provided, each party shall bear its own costs and, any 

expenses incurred, in complying with the arrangements. be specifically stated 

and explained. 
 

Legal Implications 

 
4. The attached annex is the legal agreement between Buckinghamshire and 

Milton Keynes Fire Authority, Oxfordshire County Council and Royal Berkshire 
Fire Authority 

 

Staff Implications 

 

5. This agreement will see one Principal Officer released by the ‘Assistor’ to act, 
as a Level 4 Commander for the ‘Recipient’ by transferring the staff resource to 

another Fire and Rescue Service for a temporary period 
  

Equality & Inclusion Implications 

 
6. This agreement directly affects a small cohort of officers in the three fire and 

rescue services and has no significant Equality or Inclusion implications. All 
three organisations involved have stringent policies in place to ensure 

adherence to the relevant equality and inclusion legislation. 
 

Sustainability Implications 

 
7. Officers working in neighbouring counties could see an increase in travel 

distances, but this would be minimised through remote working and, in 
Oxfordshire’s case, using electric vehicles. 
 

Risk Management 

 

8. This agreement is designed to mitigate the risk of absence of senior officers 
within Fire and Rescue and by preplanning the necessary arrangements reduce 
the risk of enacting this arrangement if required. 

 
 

 

Page 2



 

 
 
STEVE JORDEN  

Corporate Director, Commercial Development, Assets and Investment 
  

 
Annex: Legal Agreement between Buckinghamshire and Milton 

Keynes Fire Authority, Oxfordshire County Council and 

Royal Berkshire Fire Authority  
 

 
 
Contact Officer: Rob MacDougall, Director of Community Safety and Chief 

Fire Officer 
 07881 583208 

 Rob.macdougall@oxfordshire.gov.uk  
 
 

September 2021 
 

Page 3

mailto:Rob.macdougall@oxfordshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



THIS AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is dated the      of                       2021 

BETWEEN: 

(1) Buckinghamshire and Milton Keynes Fire Authority of Stocklake, Aylesbury, 

Buckinghamshire, HP20 1BD; and 

(2) Oxfordshire County Council of County Hall, New Road, Oxford OX1 1ND; and 

(3) Royal Berkshire Fire Authority of Newsham Court, Pincents Kiln, Calcot, Reading, Berkshire, 

RG31 7SD;  

the “FRAs” or “parties”; or each an “FRA” or a “party”. 

BACKGROUND: 

(A) The FRAs collaborate successfully in the operation of a single joint emergency call 

handling, mobilising and resource management function from a single location at Calcot 

in Berkshire and a fall back provision to a joint secondary control room in Kidlington in 

Oxfordshire (together the “TVFCS”). 

 

(B) The FRAs have statutory responsibilities under sections 7(2)(a); 8(2)(a) and 9(3)(a) of the 

Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004  to secure the provision of personnel to respond to 

fires, road traffic incidents, and other emergencies; have powers under section 11 of the 

Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 to respond to other emergencies; and have duties 

placed on them as Category 1 responders under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 and 

regulations made pursuant to it (the “Statutory Functions”).  

 

(C) The FRAs recognise the Covid 19 Pandemic is a national crisis that continues to test the 

capacity of the FRAs  to protect the public from the impacts of the Covid 19 Pandemic, 

and acknowledge the risk that its Principal Officers may themselves become 

incapacitated through illness or the requirements of Covid 19 self-isolation such that 

such scenarios could compromise the ability of an FRA to discharge its Statutory 

Functions. 

 

(D) The FRAs therefore wish to enter arrangements under section 16 of the Fire and Rescue 

Services Act 2004 for the discharge of the Statutory Functions of one FRA by another 

FRA through their respective cadres of Principal Officers acting as Level 4 Incident 

Commanders on the terms set out in this Agreement. 

 

IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS 

2. Definitions and Interpretations  

2.1 Where the context so requires words importing the singular only also include the plural and 

vice versa and words importing the masculine shall be construed as including the feminine or the 

neuter or vice versa 

2.2 “Area Managers” means firefighters contracted to the role of Area Manager as defined in 

the ‘National Joint Council for Local Authorities' Fire and Rescue Services, Scheme of conditions of 

service (Sixth edition)’.  

Page 5



“Assistor” means the party to the Agreement which under the provisions of this Agreement 

discharges any of the Statutory Functions of another party to this Agreement. 

“Brigade Managers” means firefighters contracted to the role of Brigade Manager as defined in the 

‘National Joint Council for Brigade Managers of Fire and Rescue Services, Constitution and scheme of 

conditions of service (5th edition)’. 

“Confidential Information” is information which is marked as such, or information which carries the 

necessarily quality of confidence; 

“Data Protection Legislation” means UK GDPR (Section 3(10) (as supplemented by section 205(4)) of 

the DPA 2018) and the Data Protection Act 2018; 

“Employment Contract” means the terms of employment between an FRA and its Principal Officer at 

the date of this Agreement, 

 “Level 4 Incident Commander” means a Principal Officer able to assume command in accordance 

with the principles set out in the National Operational Guidance, Incident Command: knowledge, 

skills and competence.  

“Personal Data” has the meaning given under Data Protection Legislation 

“Principal Officers” means Area Managers and Brigade Managers. 

“Recipient” means the party to this Agreement which under the provisions of this Agreement has its 

Statutory Functions discharged by another party to this Agreement. 

“Secretary of State” means the Minister of State jointly at the Ministry of Housing, Communities and 

Local Government and the Home Office. 

3. Release of a Principal Officer from the Assistor to the Recipient 

3.1 In the event that a Principal Officer of a prospective Recipient is, or is likely to be, 

incapacitated by illness or self-isolation, the release of a Principal Officer to the Recipient will be at 

the discretion of the Chief Fire Officer of the Assistor, following a request by the Recipient. 

3.2 In the event that the Chief Fire Officer of a prospective Recipient is, or anticipates that he is likely 

to be, incapacitated by illness or self-isolation, the Principal Officer to be released to a Recipient shall 

be either the Chief Fire Officer or Deputy Chief Fire Officer of the Assistor. The arrangements for the 

release will be notified by both the Assistor and the Recipient to the TVFCS under protocols to be 

agreed by the three Chief Fire Officers. 

3.3 The Assistor will release a Principal Officer to the Recipient in order to undertake Level 4 

Incident Commander responsibilities aligned to the Recipient’s local level 4 rota requirements and 

mobilisation and notification protocols whilst retaining their extant call sign as if an employee of the 

Recipient. 

3.3 The Assistor  shall keep accurate and complete written records of all emergency calls or 

incidents to which its Principal Officer has responded on behalf of the Recipient for the purposes of  

this Agreement and submit copies of such records to the Recipient on request. 

4.  Health and Safety 

Page 6



4.1 During the period of release of the Principal Officer, the Recipient will be responsible for 

compliance with all duties relating to health, safety and welfare at work imposed upon an employer 

by any relevant statutory provision as if the Recipient were the employer of that Principal Officer.  

4.2 The Recipient shall provide the Assistor with such information and assistance as the Assistor  

may reasonably require to carry out its obligations as the Principal Officer's employer. 

5. Indemnity  

5.1 The Assistor shall indemnify the Recipient against all costs, liabilities and damages 

whatsoever in respect of death or personal injury or loss or damage to any property incurred by the 

Recipient as a result of  the negligence of the Assistor or its Principal Officers while assisting the 

Recipient in the discharge of its functions pursuant to  the provisions of this Agreement. 

6. Principal Officer’s Employment 

6.1  The Employment Contract shall remain in force during any period of release under clause 3. 

6.2 The Assistor shall make the necessary changes to the terms of the Employment Contract so 

that it can release a Principal Officer in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

6. 3  The Assistor shall comply with the terms of the Employment Contract during any period of 

release 

6.4 The Recipient shall not, and shall not knowingly cause the Principal Officer to do anything 

that shall, breach the Employment Contract and shall have no authority to vary the terms of the 

Employment Contract or make any representations to the Principal Officer in relation to the terms of 

the Employment Contract. 

7. Dispute Resolution and Complaints  

7.1 If any party has any issues, concerns or complaints about the operation of the arrangements, 

or any matter in this Agreement, that party shall notify the other parties and the parties shall then 

seek to resolve the issue by a process of consultation between the Chief Fire Officers. If the issue 

cannot be resolved within a reasonable period of time, the matter shall be escalated to a nominee of 

each Chief Fire Officer, who shall decide on the appropriate course of action to take. If the matter 

cannot be resolved by a nominee of the respective Chief Fire Officers within 30 days, the matter may 

be escalated to the respective FRA chairpersons, or FRA portfolio holder for resolution. 

8. Data Protection 

8.1 The Assistor shall procure that its Principal Officer released under this Agreement to assist 

the Recipient will comply with the Recipient's privacy standards and/or data protection policies 

when handling Personal Data relating to any individual including, but not limited to, the Recipient’s 

employees and members of the public. 

9.  Audit 

9.1 Except where an audit is imposed on a party by a regulatory body, a party may, in any year 

and for a period of 12 months following termination of the Agreement conduct an audit on a party 

(“the other party”) in the event that a party requires the information for an Annual Statement of 

Assurance, or for any reasonable purpose: 

(a) to verify the accuracy of charges, if any; 

Page 7



(b) to review the integrity, confidentiality and security of any relevant data; 

(c) to review compliance with the Data Protection Legislation and any other legislation applicable to 

the arrangements; 

(d)  to carry out an examination of the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which the other 

party has used the Recipient’s resources; or 

(e) to verify the accuracy and completeness of any management information delivered or required 

by this Agreement. 

10. Confidentiality 

10.1 Each party shall keep confidential Confidential Information belonging to the other parties 

except as may be required by law or when such disclosure is in accordance with  this Agreement or 

may be agreed by the owning party. 

10.2 The Assistor shall procure that its Principal: 

(a) Does not directly or indirectly disclose any Confidential Information of the Recipient (or 

allow it to be used or disclosed), in whole or in part, to any person without the prior written consent 

of the Recipient; 

(b) Informs the Recipient immediately on becoming aware, or suspecting that an unauthorised 

person has become aware of such Confidential Information; 

 

11. Period, Termination, Variation 

11.1 This Agreement shall commence on the date above and shall expire in accordance with 

clause 11.1. 

11.2 Any party may withdraw from this Agreement at any time by its Chief Fire Officer giving at 

least 21 days’ notice in writing to the other parties’ Chief Fire Officers’ email addresses following 

which the Agreement will be terminated in relation to the notifying party only. 

11.3 Termination of the Agreement in relation to all parties shall be by written notice (including 

notice by email) of the majority to all parties, following which the Agreement will terminate in 

relation to all parties within 21 days. 

11.4 This Agreement may be varied by written agreement of all the Chief Fire Officers on behalf of 

the parties. 

12.  Notification to the Secretary of State 

12.1 The parties agree that the Chief Fire Officer of Oxfordshire County Council shall notify the 

Secretary of State of the existence of this Agreement (once executed by all of the parties) on behalf 

of the FRAs. 

13. Charging 

13.1 Except as otherwise provided, each party shall each bear its own costs and expenses 

incurred in complying with the arrangements. 

 

Page 8



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the FRAs have executed this Agreement as a Deed the day and year first 

above written 

 

The Common Seal of              ) 

Buckinghamshire and Milton Keynes  ) 

Fire Authority was affixed to this 

Agreement in the presence of: 

)  

) 

) 

)............................................ 

 Authorised Signatory 

 

 

The Common Seal of )  

Oxfordshire County Council was ) 

affixed to this Agreement in the presence 

of: 

) 

) 

)  

)       ........................................ 

        County Solicitor/Designated Officer 

 

 

 

The Common Seal of ) 

Royal Berkshire Fire Authority was ) 

affixed to this Agreement in the presence 

of: 

) 

) 

) 

) ............................................

 Authorised Signatory 

 

 

 

Page 9



 

Page 10


	Agenda
	4 Thames Valley Principal Officer Sharing Agreement
	CMDCSS_SEPT2121R04 - Annex to report


